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Roosevelt Island’s Past:
Does It Have a Future?

By ROBERTA B. GRATZ

Six years ago, the distin-
guished preservation archl-
tect Glorgio Cavaglieri made
a study of the assorted his-
toric buildings on Roosevelt
Island and concluded most
of them were in "a condition
suitable for reuse at an ex-
pense that was reasonable.”

The idea of that study,
Cavaglieri tecalls, was to
determine what remnants of
the {sland’s colorful history
could be incorporated Into
the proposed new city "o
achleve an architestural fix-
ture”

At that time, the Land-
marks Preservation Commis-
slon reportedly agreed guietly
not to designate any of the
buildings landmarks and to
leave thelr preservation in
the hands of the island’s de-
veloper, the state’'s Urban
Development Corp.

Now the commission Is
considering six bufldings for
designation—twe of which
are completely restored; two
more are just abeut in ruins
and the last two are some-
where in-between.

One building—the 19th-
century flve-story City Hos-
pital with its mansard roof
and stope facade which Ca-
vagller says was In “mint
condition” six years ago—is
not even being considered.
It has had three fires In the
past few years, the copper
roofing has been stolen,

in and vandals have had a
general fleld day, The six
buildings heing considered
are:

€ The Blackwell House, now
restored, & modest wood«
framed house built around
1800 for James Blackwell
whose family had owned the
{siand for more than a 100
vears betore he sold it to the
eity In 1828, Ii thereafter be-
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most of the roof has fallen -
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Blackweli Farmhouse recently restored . . .
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came the dumping ground
for the ¢ity’s poor, insane
and sick and was renamed
Weifare Island in 19821 and
Roosevell Island in 1970.

GSmail Pox Hospital, built
In the 1850s and designed by
James Renwick, architect of
8t. Patrick’s Cathedral, The
building partially collapsed
during the 1969 study and
Its rulned state is clearly
noticegble’ from the FDR
Drive. R

QThe Oclagon was the
central rotunda of the In-
sane Asylum built in 1839
whase dormitory wings were
demolished  several years
€5go.

(The 18403 lighthouse, 50-
feet high at the Island's
northernmost  tlp, was re-
portedly built by an asylum
patient.

(The 1888 Chapel of the
Good Shepherd, now restored
and set on an open site sur-
rounded by new apartment
houses, is reminiscent of an
English parish chureh with
Vietorian Gothle detail,

QThe 1892 Strecker Me-
morial Laboratory, & slmple
two-story briek building that
was at the time of construc.
tion ome of the most corn-
plete laboratories in the
country.

The six buildings were
considered this week in a
13+itera agenda of the com-
missions public hearing at
City Hall. Dane Porter, chief
planning  officer for the
Roosevelt Island Project, told
the commisslon that there
was not yet an officlal
UDC positlon on the propo-
sals.

‘Landmarks Park’ .

Promotional material for
the new city has shown plans
for & “landmarks park”
with the Small Pox Hospital,
Strecker Laboratory and
City Hospltal included. Such
plans also have Included a
Lighthouse Park and an Qc-
tagon Park.

But following the hearing,
Miss Porter said that all
those plans are now up in
the air because of financial
difficulties at UDC, whose
own economic woes and nears
default predated the city's
current erisis.

Miss Porter added that if
and when the second phase
of the island Is begun, "We'll
probably take a new look” at
those plans. But she added,
“the next restoration project
would be a low priority
item.”

Cavaglier!, known for his
restoration  designg of the
Jelfrrson  Market  Lihrary
and New York Shakespeare !
Theatre, noted that it is no |
longer, “purely a dollar and |
cents issue. An urban design |
decision must first be mads
as 9 the charactar wonied
for the island before anyone
ean determine iI restoration
is worthwhile™
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